
1800 12th Street | PO Box 2004 | Cayce SC 29171 
P 803 796 9020 | F 803 796 9072 

caycesc.gov 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
City of Cayce 

Regular Council Meeting 
Tuesday, April 9, 2024 

6:00 p.m. – Cayce City Hall – 1800 12th Street 
www.caycesc.gov  

 
To Access Council Meeting Livestream, click 

https://www.youtube.com/@cityofcayce1137/streams 
 
 

 
I. Call to Order 

 
A. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance 

 
B. Approval of Minutes 

March 5, 2024 Regular Council Meeting 
March 20, 2024 Budget Work Session 
March 20, 2024 Regular Council Meeting  
 

II. Public Comment Regarding Items on the Agenda 
    

III. Items for Discussion and Possible Approval  
 

A.       Discussion and Approval of Selection of Vendor for the Purchase of Handheld             
Radios for the Police Department 
 

B.       Discussion of, and Motions Approving, Service of Council Members on 
Designated External Boards and Commissions 
 

C.       Discussion and Approval of Memorandum of Agreements (MOA) with South 
Carolina Department of Transportation (SCDOT) for Utility Relocation (Sewer and 
Water) at Congaree Creek Bridge on US 21 Improvement 

   
IV. Ordinance and Resolution 

 
A. Discussion and Approval of Ordinance 2024-03 Amending Zoning Ordinance 

Article 6 District Regulations Concerning Uses in the Design Overlay Districts – 
First Reading 

 
B. Consideration and Approval of Resolution Approving Leave Policy and Procedures 

for Employees of the City of Cayce     
 

 V. Committee Matters 
 

A.        Approval to Enter the Following Committee Approved Minutes into the City’s 

Mayor 
Elise Partin 

Mayor Pro-Tem Council Members City Manager      Deputy City  Manager 
          Tim James Phil Carter Tracy Hegler       

             Hunter Sox 
            Byron Thomas 

Jim Crosland 

Assistant City Manager 
Michael Conley  

http://www.caycesc.gov/
https://www.youtube.com/@cityofcayce1137/streams


 Record 
 Board of Zoning Appeals – December 18, 2023 

Museum Commission – February 7, 2024 
Planning Commission – February 26, 2024 
 

B.        Appointments and Reappointment 
 Board of Zoning Appeal – Two (2) Positions  
 Planning Commission – One (1) Position   

 
     VI.  City Manager’s Report 

 
 VII.        Council Comments 
 
VIII. Executive Session 
 

A.   Receipt of legal advice relating to claims and potential claims by and against the 
City and other matters covered by the attorney-client privilege including:  

 
1. Update on Lexington County’s Cancellation of Road Maintenance Agreement 
2. Discussion of negotiations incident to proposed contractual arrangements   

concerning 800 Lexington Avenue 
  

IX. Reconvene  
 

   X. Possible actions by Council in follow up to Executive Session 
 

XI.   Discussion and Approval of Sale of Real Property of City at 800 Lexington Avenue 
  

  XII. Adjourn 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 SPECIAL NOTE:  Upon request, the City of Cayce will provide this document in 
whatever form necessary for the physically challenged or impaired. 



ITEM I. B. 

















ITEM I. B. 































ITEM I. B. 













Memorandum
To: Mayor and Council  

From: Tracy Hegler, City Manager 

Date: April 9, 2024 

Subject: Additional Funding for Police Handheld Radios 

Issue 

Discussion and Approval for Additional Funding for Police Handheld Radios 

Background 

For the FY24 budget, City Council approved $297,000 from the allotted ARPA funds for the purchase 
of police handheld radios through an approved vendor. Additional funding is requested due to the 
increase in pricing from the original quote.    
Staff received two quotes for the handheld radios and both vendors are on state contract: 

Motorola        $407,990 
Kenwood        $321,022 

Radios include warranty, wireless microphones, and earpieces. Staff is continuing to search for grant 
funding for the in-car radios.   

Recommendation 

Staff recommends Council approve the additional funding of $25,000 to purchase the police radios 
from Kenwood through the state contract pricing. The additional funding would come from the 
miscellaneous unallotted ARPA tranche that we currently hold.      

ITEM III. A. 



Memorandum
To: Mayor and Council  

From: Tracy Hegler, City Manager 

Date: April 9, 2024 

Subject: Council Members serving on designated external boards and commissions 

Issue 

Discussion of, and motions concerning, service of Council Members on designated external boards and 
commissions. 

Background 

Council Members are asked to participate in or are appointed to external boards and commissions.  In 
addition to others that were discussed at the March 20, 2024 Council Meeting, a member of City 
Council is also appointed to the Central Midlands Regional Transit Authority (CMRTA) Lexington Transit 
Workgroup.  This is an advisory group to the CMRTA’s Board. 

Recommendation 

Council discretion. 

ITEM III. B. 



Memorandum
To: Mayor and Council  

From: Tracy Hegler, City Manager 

Date: April 9, 2024 

Subject: Memorandum of Agreements with South Carolina Department of Transportation (SCDOT) 
and Funding for Water and Sewer Utility Relocations for the US Highway 21 Bridge 
Replacement over Congaree Creek Project 

Issue 

Council approval is needed to enter into Memorandum of Agreements (MOA) with South Carolina 
Department of Transportation (SCDOT) for Utility Relocations required because of the US Highway 21 
bridge replacement over Congaree Creek Project.  There is an MOA for each service – sewer and water.  
Council approval is also needed to approve the funding required to relocate the sewer. 

Background 

As part of the SCDOT bridge repair program, SCDOT is replacing the bridge on US 21 (Charleston 
Highway) over Congaree Creek.  The City of Cayce has utilities in this area that must be relocated as part 
of the Project. The relocations have been designed by Hanna Engineering, LLC and will fall under the 
construction contract for the SCDOT Intersection Improvement Project. 

SC Code Section 57-5-880 requires SCDOT to pay for relocation costs for all small utilities.  For large 
utilities, SCDOT is only required to pay for relocation costs if funds are available after paying for the 
relocations for small utilities.  The City of Cayce is considered a small utility for our water system and a 
large utility for our sewer system.  For this project, SCDOT has indicated that funds are not available to 
pay all costs.  The total allocated for utility relocations, per SC Code 57-5-880, is 4.5% of the total 
estimated SCDOT construction cost for the bridge replacement. SCDOT’s estimated cost for the bridge is 
approximately $10.1 Million, which allows approximately $456,511 for all utility relocations.  The 
estimated water relocation cost is $215,100, but SCDOT (per the SC Code) is required to cover the cost 
for all the water relocation because the City is a small utility.  The SCDOT remaining utility relocation 
budget, then is $241,411 and is short of the estimated sewer relocation costs of $398,700. The 
remaining proposed sewer relocation cost by law will need to be covered by the City ($157,289). 

In order for the City of Cayce to receive funding for the water relocation, the Memorandum of 
Agreement for In-Contract Utility Relocation for the US 21 bridge replacement over Congaree Creek 
Water Line Relocation and the Memorandum of Agreement for In-Contract Utility Relocation for the US 
21 bridge replacement over Congaree Creek Sewer Relocation must both be approved.  As outlined in 

ITEM III. C. 



the MOAs, the City’s share of the cost for the water relocation is $0.  The City must pay a portion of 
sewer relocation work, which is currently estimated at $157,289. 
 
Both agreements are attached and have been reviewed by the City’s Attorney. 
 
Recommendation 
 
Staff recommends Council approve both In-Contract Utility Relocation MOAs for the US Highway 21 
bridge replacement over Congaree Creek (one for sewer and one for water) and authorize the City 
Manager to execute.  In addition, staff recommends the Council approve payment for the sewer 
relocation portion of the project, of up to $157,289, from the Utilities O&M unreserved fund balance.  



ITEM III. C. 











ITEM III. C. 









Memorandum
To: 

From: 

Date: 

Subject: 

Mayor and Council 

Tracy Hegler, City Manager 

April 9, 2024 

First Reading of an Ordinance Amending Article 6 District Regulations, Section - 
6.10 Design Overlay District of the Cayce Zoning Ordinance concerning rules 
for certain uses in the Design Overlay Districts 

Issue 

Council approval is needed for the first reading of an ordinance amending Article 6 District 
Regulations, Section 6.10 Design Overlay District concerning rules for certain uses in the 
Design Overlay Districts. 

Background 

As a result of staff regular review of the Zoning Ordinance, they recommended these 
amendments to the Design Overlay Districts. The redlined version of the ordinance is attached 
for your review.  

The Planning Commission held a regularly scheduled meeting on March 18, 2024 and voted on 
amending Article 6 District Regulations, Section 6.10 Design Overlay District.  No one spoke for 
or against the amendment. 

The Planning Commission unanimously recommended that the Council approve the First 
Reading of an Ordinance amending Article 6 District Regulations, Section 6.10 Design Overlay 
District concerning rules for certain uses in the Design Overlay Districts. 

Recommendation 

Staff recommends adoption of these amendments to assist in updating our City’s overlay 
districts and giving the related Ordinance First Reading approval.  

ITEM IV. A. 



1 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) 
) 

COUNTY OF LEXINGTON  ) 
) 

CITY OF CAYCE ) 
) 

ORDINANCE 2024-03 
Amending Language in Article 6 
District Regulations, Section 6.10 
Design Overlay District of the Cayce 
Zoning Ordinance Regarding Certain 
Uses in the Design Overlay Districts 

WHEREAS, Council has determined that it is in the best interest of the public to 
amend Article 6 District Regulations, Section 6.10 Design Overlay District to add or 
remove language regarding certain uses in the Design Overlay Districts; 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a regularly scheduled public hearing 
on this request to receive comments from the public; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission met on March 18, 2024, to review public 
comments and vote on recommending the amended Article 6 District Regulations, 
Section 6.10 Design Overlay District of the Cayce Zoning Ordinance and unanimously 
decided that they do recommend this amendment as shown on the attached document, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council of the City of 
Cayce, in Council, duly assembled, that Article 6 District Regulations, Section 6.10 Design 
Overlay District is hereby amended as shown on the attached document. 

This Ordinance shall be effective from the date of second reading approval by 
Council. 

DONE IN MEETING DULY ASSEMBLED, this ______ day of _________2024. 

          ______________________________ 
          Elise Partin, Mayor 

Attest: 

______________________________ 
Mendy Corder, CMC, Municipal Clerk 

First Reading: _____________________ 

Second Reading and Adoption: ____________ 

Approved as to form:     __________________________ 
      Danny C. Crowe, City Attorney 

ITEM IV. A. 



ITEM IV. A. 











Memorandum
To: Mayor and Council  

From: Tracy Hegler, City Manager 

Date: April 9, 2024  

Subject: Resolution Approving Leave Policy and Procedures for Employees of the City of Cayce 

ISSUE 

Discussion and Approval of a Resolution Approving Leave Policy and Procedures for Employees of the 
City of Cayce. 

BACKGROUND 

The City of Cayce has a reputation of taking care of its employees. Such examples include increasing 
starting salaries, Council approving Parental Leave, and increases in cost of living. City staff would like 
to recommend the following changes to the City’s Leave Policy to remain competitive in the job market. 

1. Administration has compared the City’s annual leave policy to many other local agencies and
the State and proposes the following:

Employee Years Current Proposed 
Hire to 1 Year 1 Week (40 Hrs.) Hire to 5 Years - 2 Weeks (80 Hrs.) 
Year 2 thru 9 2 Weeks (80 Hrs.) 5 Years to 15 Years - 3 Weeks (120 Hrs.) 
Year 10 thru 19 3 Weeks (120 Hrs.) Over 15 Years - 4 Weeks (160 Hrs.) 
Year 20 and Above 4 Weeks (160 Hrs.) 

2. Accrued annual leave for Assistant Director & Director positions and above will also be adjusted
based on years of experience. Assistant Director & Director must be employed by the City of Cayce
for a minimum of 5 years to receive a 50% Annual Leave payout and over 10 years to receive a 100%
payout of Annual Leave. We have had several obstacles in filling our Director level positions due to
not being competitive in our leave benefits. These positions are not entry level and require many
years of experience.

3. Annual leave accruals may be carried over each calendar year accruable up to 320 hours (current
policy allows for 400 total hours to be accrued at paid out at time of departure). Any employee that
currently has over 320 accrued hours will be grandfathered and will not lose any unspent hours and
are entitled to full pay-out at time of departure from the City.

4. Bereavement Leave- Immediate Family member is defined as a spouse or child death and entitles
the employee with up to 10 days of paid leave to cope with that loss.

If approved, the following changes will affect all but 18 employees with the largest benefiting the 1-to-4-
year employee. The second largest group is 5–15-year employee.  

ITEM IV. B. 



 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Staff recommends Council approve a Resolution Approving Leave Policy and Procedures for Employees 
of the City of Cayce to go into effect on April 11, 2024. Staff feels strongly that this will be a much-
needed benefit for our current employees and will help in our recruitment efforts in an increasingly 
competitive environment. 
 
 
 



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )     RESOLUTION 
) Approving Leave Policy and  

COUNTY OF LEXINGTON ) Procedures for Employees of 
) the City of Cayce 

CITY OF CAYCE   ) 

WHEREAS, the City Council, upon the recommendation of the City Manager, 
wishes to approve and adopt the Leave Policy and Procedures for Employees developed 
by the City Manager; and 

WHEREAS, S.C. Code section 5-7-260 allows the Council to proceed by resolution 
or ordinance with regard to those actions of Council, such as this one, that are not referred 
to in that Code section, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Council of the City of 
Cayce, in Council duly assembled, as follows: 

The City Council hereby approves and adopts the attached Leave Policy and 
Procedures for City of Cayce employees.  

ADOPTED this ______ day of April 2024. 

___________________________ 
 Elise Partin, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

_______________________________ 
Mendy Corder, CMC, Municipal Clerk 

Approved as to form: __________________________ 
   Danny C. Crowe, City Attorney 

ITEM IV. B. 



CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 
LEAVE POLICY & PROCEDURES 

ANNUAL LEAVE 

The City of Cayce encourages employees to take annual leave for which they are eligible.  Employees desiring to take 
annual leave should give their supervisors at least two weeks’ advance notice if applicable.  Annual leave will be scheduled 
as much as practical in accordance with employee requests.  The City’s workload demands, however, are paramount.  An 
employee may be eligible to take annual leave after completing a successful introductory period with the City.  Although 
employees who have not completed the introductory period accrue annual leave, the leave may not be taken until the 
introductory period has been completed or is approved by their department head.   

Regular Full-Time Employees Accrual Rates 

Hire date to five (5) years of continuous service: 3.08 hours bi-weekly (approximately 80 
hours annually). 

Greater than five (5) years of continuous service but less than fifteen (15) years of 
continuous service: 4.62 hours biweekly (approximately 120 hours annually). 

Fifteen (15) years of continuous service or more: 6.15 hours biweekly (approximately 160 
hours annually). 

Accrued annual leave for Assistant Director & Director positions and above will also be adjusted based on years of 
experience. Assistant Director & Director must be employed by the City of Cayce for a minimum of 5 years to receive a 
50% Annual Leave payout and over 10 years to receive a 100% payout of Annual Leave.  

Regular Full-Time Shift Employee Accrual Rates (Fire Department): 

Hire date to five (5) years of continuous service: 3.69 hours bi-weekly (approximately 96 
hours annually). 

Greater than five (5) years of continuous service but less than fifteen (15) years of 
continuous service: 5.54 hours bi-weekly (approximately 144 hours annually). 

Fifteen (15) years of continuous service or more: 7.38 hours biweekly (approximately 
192 hours annually). 

Annual Leave Cap 

Annual leave accruals may be carried over each calendar year accruable up to a maximum of three hundred twenty (320) 
hours for regular full-time employees.  Accumulated annual leave credited to an employee at the time of a voluntary 
separation with the required notice will be paid to the employee, up to the maximum accrual limitation.  Employees who 
are on a leave of absence for longer than 30 days, will not accrue annual leave. If the employee resignes, retires or 
separates on non-disciplinary terms, the employee may be paid out for their entire accrued balance up to 320 hours max. 

Holiday Cash-In Benefit 

Regular full-time employees may be able to “cash-in” annual leave to aid in holiday preparation.  This benefit occurs only 
in the month of November and must adhere to the following guidelines: 

• A minimum of 80 hours accrued annual leave must be available before the “cash-in” option is used.
• A maximum up to 40 hours is allowed to be “cashed-in” and must be taken in 8-hour increments.
• The “cashed-in” annual leave would be handled through a special payroll between the November and December

payroll weeks.  This benefit is available only at that time of the year.

ITEM IV.B. 



 

Procedure: 

• Any employee wishing to participate in this program must submit a leave form to Human Resources by November 
1 of the year they want to “cash-in” their annual leave. 

• The leave slip should detail the number of hours that they want to convert. 
• Once the request is made, no changes will be accepted after November 10. 
• Finance will generate a separate payroll check that may include required taxes.  

SICK LEAVE 

Regular full-time employees accrue sick leave at the rate of 3.70 hours per pay period (approximately 96 hours per year). 

Sick leave pay may be granted to regular employees when they are unable to perform their duties because of sickness, 
injury (i.e. the first seven (7) days before Workers’ Compensation begins), or when absent for the purpose of being 
professionally treated (i.e. doctor, eye and dental appointments, etc.). 

Sick leave cannot be granted automatically if a person is out of work: it must be requested.  Sick leave must be approved 
by the employee’s immediate supervisor and department head and is subject to review by Human Resources and the City 
Manager.  Sick leave is not to be taken in advance. 

When sickness occurs within a period of annual leave, the period of illness, upon presentation of certification of a medical 
physician, may be charged as sick leave and the charge against annual leave shall be reduced accordingly. 

Employees are permitted to use up to 40 hours of sick leave to care for a member of their immediate family who is ill or 
hospitalized- child, mother, father, spouse ONLY. The immediate family is considered to include stepfamily relationships. 
This benefit runs on a calendar year (January- December). After two days of absence, you MUST submit a written 
statement from a qualified physician stating that the treatment was for the employee’s immediate family member(s). If 
you cannot provide a statement, then annual leave will be used.  

Discipline And Excessive Use of Leave 

An attendance record is kept for every employee and is updated by the Human Resources Department every payroll.  
Several times a year, the records are checked for excessive absences and notification will be sent to all supervisors.  If an 
employee is out for excessive absences, it is the Supervisors responsibility to address the situation and handle with proper 
documentation.  Further infractions may lead to suspension or termination. Leave used for Workers Compensation will 
not be included in this rule. 

The department head may require an employee to furnish certification of sickness or professional treatment at such time 
and for such period as he deems necessary for monitoring the use of sick leave. 

Sick Leave Cap 

Sick leave accruals may be carried over each calendar year accruable up to a maximum of seven hundred twenty (720) 
hours for regular full-time employees.  Sick leave accruals are not paid out upon separation or retirement.  Employees 
who are on a leave of absence for longer than 30 days, will not accrue sick leave.  

  



PAID PARENTAL LEAVE POLICY 

As of April 19, 2023, City of Cayce employees who give birth to a biological newborn child are entitled to receive 6 weeks 
of paid parental leave. City of Cayce employees whose co-parent gives birth to a biological newborn child are entitled to 
receive 2 weeks of paid parental leave following the birth of the employee’s child. The City will also provide the same 
paid parental leave to employees following the initial placement of a child for legal adoption where the employee is 
primarily responsible for the care and nurturing of the child.  The child must be 17 years of age or younger on or after 
April 19, 2023  

The purpose of paid parental leave is to enable the employee to care for and bond with a newborn or a newly adopted 
child. This policy will run concurrently with the Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) leave, as applicable. This policy will 
be in effect for births or adoptions occurring on or after April 19, 2023. 

Eligibility 

Eligible employees must meet the following criteria: 
• Have been employed with the City of Cayce for at least 12 consecutive months. 
• Have worked at least 1,250 hours during the 12 consecutive months immediately preceding the date the leave 

would begin. 
• Be a full-time, regular employee (temporary employees and part-time employees are not eligible for this 

benefit). 
In addition, employees must meet one of the following criteria: 

• Have given birth to a child. 
• Be a spouse or committed partner of a woman who has given birth to a child. 
• Have adopted a child aged 17 or younger. The adoption of a new spouse’s child is excluded from this policy.  

Amount, Time Frame and Duration of Paid Parental Leave 

• Eligible employees will receive a maximum of 240 hours (birth parent) or 80 hours (coparent) of paid parental 
leave per birth or adoption. The fact that a multiple birth or adoption occurs (e.g., the birth of twins or adoption 
of siblings) does not increase the 240-hours or 80 hours total amount of paid parental leave granted for that 
event. In addition, in no case will an employee receive more than 240 hours or 80 hours of paid parental leave in 
a rolling 12-month period, regardless of whether more than one birth or adoption placement event occurs 
within that 12-month time frame.  

• Each week of paid parental leave is compensated at 100 percent of the employee’s regular, straight-time weekly 
pay. Firefighting personnel have a special work schedule and a separate leave policy which will be 
communicated to them. Paid parental leave will be paid on a biweekly basis on regularly scheduled pay dates. 

• Approved paid parental leave may be taken at any time during the twelve-month period immediately following 
the birth or adoption of a child with the employee. Paid parental leave may not be used or extended beyond this 
twelve-month time frame.  

• Employees must take paid parental leave in one continuous period of leave up to the maximum paid parental 
leave allowed during the twelve-month time frame indicated above.  

• If both parents are eligible City of Cayce employees, paid parental leave may be taken concurrently, 
consecutively, or at a different time as the other eligible employee. 

• Upon termination of the individual’s employment at the City of Cayce, he or she will not be paid for any unused 
paid parental leave for which he or she was eligible. 

Coordination with Other Policies 

• Paid parental leave taken under this policy will run concurrently with approved leave under FMLA; thus, any 
leave taken under this policy that falls under the definition of circumstances qualifying for leave due to the birth 



or placement of a child due to adoption, the leave will be counted toward the 12 weeks of available FMLA leave 
per a 12-month period. All other requirements and provisions under the FMLA will apply. In no case will the total 
amount of leave—whether paid or unpaid—granted to the employee under the FMLA exceed 12 weeks during 
the 12-month rolling FMLA period. Please refer to the Family and Medical Leave Policy for further guidance. 

• After the paid parental leave is exhausted, the balance of FMLA leave (if applicable) will be compensated 
through employee’s accrued sick and/or vacation time. Upon exhaustion of accrued sick and vacation time, any 
remaining leave will be unpaid leave. Please refer to the Family and Medical Leave Policy for further guidance. 

• The City of Cayce will maintain all benefits for employees during the paid parental leave period just as if they 
were taking any other City paid leave such as paid vacation leave or paid sick leave. 

• If a City of Cayce holiday occurs while the employee is on paid parental leave, such day will be charged to 
holiday pay; such holiday pay will not be counted against the total paid parental leave entitlement. 

• If the employee is on paid parental leave when the City of Cayce offices close for inclement weather or other 
non-traditional closing that time will be recorded as paid parental leave. City of Cayce office closure days will not 
extend the paid parental leave entitlement. 

• An employee who takes paid parental leave that does not qualify for FMLA leave will be afforded the same level 
of job protection for the period of time that the employee is on paid parental leave as if the employee were on 
FMLA-qualifying leave. 

Requests for Paid Parental Leave 

• The employee will provide his or her supervisor and the human resource department with notice of the request 
for leave at least 30 days prior to the proposed date of the leave (or if the leave was not foreseeable, as soon as 
possible). The employee must complete the necessary HR forms and provide all documentation as required by 
the HR department to substantiate the request. 

• As is the case with all City of Cayce policies, the City has the exclusive right to interpret this policy. 

Required Documentation 

• Employees must submit the requested documentation to receive the Paid Parental Leave within thirty (30) days 
of the birth or initial legal placement for adoption, or as soon as is practicable after the documentation becomes 
available. Employees may be permitted to begin Paid Parental Leave following the qualifying event and pending 
receipt of this documentation. However, if the required documentation is not provided within thirty (30) days of 
the event, the employee will be required to substitute all other paid leave available and, if sufficient leave is not 
available, will be placed on Leave Without Pay for the period they were absent from work. Please note that the 
documentation required related to FMLA leave is governed by the Family Medical Leave Act. While the request 
for Paid Parental Leave and the paperwork related to FMLA leave require some of the same information, the 
Paid Parental Leave request and FMLA paperwork are separate documents. 

• The employee is required to supply only one form of documentation from the applicable qualifying event list 
below: 

Qualifying Event Required Documentation  
(Employee Selects One) 

Adoption - Adoption order and/or agreement confirming the initial date of placement 

Birth  - Birth Certificate 
- Custody Order 

All documents must include the date of the qualifying event and reflect that the employee is the legal parent of the 
child.  



RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS 

The following days are currently considered official holidays for regular full-time employees whose work does not require 
their being on duty: 

• New Year’s Day 
• Martin Luther King, Jr.’s Birthday 
• President’s Day 
• Good Friday 
• Memorial Day 
• Independence Day 
• Labor Day 
• Juneteenth Day  
• Veteran’s Day 
• Thanksgiving Day/Day after Thanksgiving 
• Christmas Eve/Christmas Day/Day after Christmas 

Additionally, the City typically provides employees with three (3) hours of leave on the day before Thanksgiving. 

When the holiday falls on Saturday, the preceding Friday is usually observed.  When the holiday falls on Sunday, the 
following Monday is usually observed as the holiday.  If a holiday falls in a week during which a regular employee is 
required to work his full scheduled hours, he will be paid his regular rate of pay in addition to eight hours of holiday pay 
at straight rate.   

To receive holiday pay, the employee must work his last scheduled working day before, and first scheduled working day 
after a holiday or have approved annual leave, pre-approved sick leave or provide a doctor’s excuse. 

COUPONS 

The City may annually reward the employees with a free day off coupon for Safe Driver.  Any coupon program must be 
prior approved by the City Manager and Council due to possible budgetary impact. 

PERSONAL LEAVE TIME FOR SICK FAMILY MEMBERS 

The City of Cayce currently provides paid annual and sick leave for all regular full-time personnel.  Effective 1/1/2021, 
employees are permitted to use up to 40 hours of sick leave when they need to be off in cases where a member of their 
immediate family is ill or hospitalized - child, mother, father, spouse ONLY.  The immediate family is considered to include 
stepfamily relationships.  This benefit runs on a CALENDAR YEAR (January – December). 

It should be stressed that this policy and the use of these sick days by City employees is not a substitute for annual leave 
or non-family illness or business reasons, or purposes other than noted above.  After two days absent, you MUST provide 
a written statement from a qualified physician stating that the treatment was for the employee’s immediate family 
member(s) (as stated above).  If you cannot provide a statement, then annual leave will be used.  



MEDICAL/PERSONAL  

PHYSICAL DISABILITY AND PERSONAL LEAVE (APPLIES ONLY TO EMPLOYEES EMPLOYED LESS THAN 12 MONTHS AND TO 
EMPLOYEES WHO HAVE WORKED FEWER THAN 1250 HOURS OR LESS IN THE PRECEDING 12 MONTHS).   

An employee who has completed his introductory period (and any extension thereof) may request a leave of absence for 
up to 12 weeks when unable to work because of sickness, pregnancy or injury on or off the job. Such an employee may 
also apply for leave of absence for personal reasons. Personal leave or any extensions of medical leave must be supported 
by proper documentation and granted only at the discretion of the City Manager.  
 
Employees are requested to apply for leaves of absence as far in advance of need as is possible, but an employee may be 
placed on leave status without application when the circumstances warrant such action.  
 
Physical disability leave begins on the first day of absence.  
 
After the employee has exhausted his annual and/or sick leave, as a general rule, an employee on leave of absence is not 
entitled to wages or fringe benefits and does not accrue fringe benefits. Employees on leave of absence may not engage 
in other employment.  
 
Employees desiring to return to work from an unpaid leave of absence should notify the Human Resources Department 
in writing at least ten days prior to their desired return date. If the City finds that the employee is fit to resume his duties, 
the employee may be returned to his previous position if it is vacant and is to be filled, or to some other position of equal 
or lesser compensation for which he is qualified and where there is a vacancy to be filled. If the employee is not returned 
to active employment, he may be continued on leave of absence status until he is returned to active duty status or his 
leave of absence expires, whichever occurs sooner. Any employee who has not been reinstated within six months 
following the commencement of a leave of absence is subject to termination if no reasonable accommodation can be 
made. Termination does not affect the employee’s eligibility to be considered for hire as a new employee at some future 
time. Further, employees with circumstances that warrant special consideration should bring those circumstances to the 
attention of management. 

FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE ACT (FMLA)  

Applies only to employees employed 12 months or longer and who have worked 1250 hours or more in the preceding 12 
months, both prior to commencement of leave. 

General Informa�on 

Employees who meet the length of service and hours worked requirement described above have rights under the Family 
and Medical Leave Act. Generally, employees must request leaves of absence under this law and policy but, in 
appropriate situa�ons, employees may be placed on leave status without applica�on. 

Reason for Leave of Absence 

1. Medical and Family Leave.  
An eligible employee may be en�tled to a leave of absence under this law and policy if a serious health condi�on, 
including disability resul�ng from an on-the-job injury, prevents the employee from being able to perform his job, if the 
employee’s spouse, child or parent has a serious health condi�on and the employee must be absent from work in order 
to care for that rela�ve, or to care for a natural child, adopted child, or formally placed foster child, provided that 
en�tlement to leave to care for a child who is newly born or newly received in the employee’s household shall end 12 
months a�er a natural child is born or 12 months a�er an adopted or foster child is received in the employee’s 
household.  
 
 



2. Military Caregiver Leave.  
An eligible employee whose spouse, parent, child or next-of-kin is a covered service member of the Armed Forces of the 
United States may be en�tled to leave of absence to care for the service member if he is injured while on covered ac�ve 
duty. 
 

3. Qualifying Military Exigency Leave.  
An eligible employee whose spouse, parent or child is a member of the Armed Forces of the United States and is on 
ac�ve duty or called to ac�ve duty in federal service may be en�tled to a leave of absence due to one or more qualifying 
exigencies arising out of the ac�ve duty or call to ac�ve duty. Qualifying exigencies are: (1) Short-no�ce deployment (i.e., 
no�ce of 7 days or less); (2) Military events and related ac�vi�es; (3) Childcare and school ac�vi�es (regular or rou�ne 
childcare by the employee 
does not count); (4) Financial and legal arrangements; (5) Counseling; (6) Rest and 
recupera�on; (7) Post-deployment ac�vi�es; and (8) Addi�onal ac�vi�es not encompassed in 
the other categories, but agreed to by the employer and employee. 
 
Proof of need for leave of absence may be required regardless of the type of leave taken. 

An eligible employee will be granted a leave of absence under this law and policy if a serious 
health condi�on, including disability resul�ng from an on-the-job injury, prevents the employee from 
being able to perform his job; if the employee’s spouse, child or parent has a serious health condi�on and the employee 
must be absent from work to care for that rela�ve; or if the employee must care for a natural child, adopted child, or 
formally placed foster child, provided that en�tlement to leave to care for a child who is newly born or newly received in 
the employee’s household shall end 12 months a�er a natural child is born or 12 months a�er an adopted or foster child 
is received in the employee’s household. 

Length of Leave 

1. Medical and Family Leave.  
An eligible employee may take the equivalent of a total of 12 work weeks of leave during any 12 consecu�ve months for 
his own serious health condi�on, that of a parent, spouse or child, or to care for a newly born or newly received child. 
Leave to care for a newly born or newly received child must be taken consecu�vely. Leave required because of the 
employee’s own serious health condi�on or that of a spouse, child, or parent, may be taken intermitently or by means 
of a modified work schedule when necessary. 

2. Military Caregiver Leave.  
Leave to care for an injured service member may be taken for up to 26 work weeks in a single 12 month period. Any 
leave taken by the employee for any other FMLA-qualifying reason will count against the 26 weeks of leave permited to 
care for an injured service member. 

3. Qualifying Military Exigency Leave.  
Leave taken because of a qualifying exigency is available for up to 12 work weeks in any 12 consecu�ve months. Leave 
taken because of a short no�ce deployment is limited 7 days from the date of no�ce, and leave taken to be with the 
service member during periods of rest and recupera�on are limited to 5 days per period of rest and recupera�on. Leave 
taken to atend post-deployment ac�vi�es must be taken within 90 days of the end of ac�ve-duty service. 
 

Coordina�on of Leave and Paid Time Off 

An employee who must be absent due to his own serious health condi�on will be paid for �me lost from work first from 
any accrued sick leave balances then from any accrued annual leave balances and similar balances. An employee who 
takes leave for any other reason will be paid for �me lost from work from any accrued annual leave balance and similar 
balances. Leave taken under this policy counts toward the employee’s 12-weeks (or 26-weeks, where appropriate) of 
leave regardless of whether all or part of the employee’s leave is paid. 
 
 



Effect of Leave on Accrual of Fringe Benefits 

1. Health benefit plan.  
Employees taking leave under this policy must con�nue to pay their por�on of health benefit plan premiums on the 
same date that such por�on of premiums would be deducted from the employee’s wages. Failure to make �mely 
premium payments may result in a lapse or termina�on of benefits. 
 

2. Accrual of paid leave.  
Unpaid �me lost from work due to leave granted under this policy is not considered �me worked for the purpose of 
accrual of paid �me off. 
 
 

Employee Responsibility 

Employees who request leave under this policy must give 30 days advance no�ce or such lesser amount of no�ce as is 
possible in the par�cular circumstances. When the need for leave is unforeseeable, the employee must follow the 
normal procedure for repor�ng an absence. Employees may not engage in other employment while on leave of absence 
without the express writen permission of the [administrator/manager/mayor]. 
 

Termina�on of Leave of Absence 

A leave of absence under this policy generally ends when the need for the leave of absence ends or when the maximum 
leave described above has been taken, whichever occurs sooner. 
 

Reinstatement 

At or before the conclusion of the FMLA leave of absence the employee is en�tled to reinstatement to his former 
posi�on or to a posi�on equivalent to his former posi�on. The employee must demonstrate that he is fit for duty and 
must give reasonable no�ce of intent to return to work. 
 

Extension of Leave Without Benefits 
An employee who is unable to perform the du�es of his posi�on due to his own disability and who has exhausted his 
en�tlement to leave under the Family and Medical Leave Act by taking 12 consecu�ve weeks of leave may, in the 
discre�on of the [administrator/manager/mayor], upon writen applica�on, be granted up to an addi�onal 12 weeks of 
leave. This addi�onal leave of absence does not en�tle the employee to reinstatement or to payment of any por�on of 
his health benefit plan premiums. If the employee is able to return to work prior to the exhaus�on of his extended leave, 
he may be returned to 
his previous posi�on if it is vacant and is to be filled, or to some other posi�on of equal or lesser compensa�on for which 
he is qualified and where there is a vacancy to be filled. If the employee is not 
returned to ac�ve employment, he may be con�nued on extended leave of absence status un�l he is 
returned to ac�ve-duty status or his extended leave of absence expires, whichever occurs sooner. Employees who have 
exhausted their FMLA leave under other circumstances, but who con�nue to require leave that would qualify for FMLA 
leave if such leave had not been exhausted, may apply for 
an extended leave of absence for personal reasons. Such extended leaves are granted only at the discre�on of the City 
Manager.  
 
 
 
 
 



Special Situa�ons 
1. Spouses 

When both a husband and a wife are employed by the City, their combined right to a leave of absence because of the 
birth or placement of a child, or to care for a newly born or placed child or to care for a parent with a serious health 
condi�on is 12 weeks in a 12-month period, or 26 weeks in a single 12-month period to care for an injured service 
member. 
 

2. Key employees (salaried employee in highest paid 10 percent of all employees).  
Such employees may be denied reinstatement rights if reinstatement would cause substan�al and 
grievous economic injury to opera�ons. 
 

No�ce of Rights 
Federal law requires that we provide you with the no�ce of your rights that appears as Appendix A. (At the End of this 
Document)  

 

MEDICAL COMMUNICATIONS 

Employees may be required to have a medical examination before they return to work from leave involving the employees 
own serious health condition whenever a genuine issue exists as to whether the employee can perform the essential 
functions of the job.  Medical examinations required by City of Cayce will be paid for by City of Cayce.  The results of the 
examination become the property of City of Cayce. 

Employees who become ill on the job or suffer any work-related injury, no matter how minor, and any other employee 
who observes such illness or injury are required to report the incident immediately to their supervisor or other 
management official. 

Giving false information about an alleged injury or illness on oneself or another person may result in disciplinary action, 
up to and including termination without notice. 

MILITARY/UNIFORMED SERVICE LEAVE   

Employees are entitled to leave of absence and reinstatement upon return from leave of absence for military service 
(including Reserve and National Guard duty) as may be provided by applicable state and federal law. The provisions of 
these laws change from time to time and for that reason no effort is made to set forth the law in this policy. 
Employees on military leave receive paid leave for up to 15 days per military fiscal year for training or call-up. In 
addition, if an employee is called upon to serve during an emergency the employee receives paid leave for not exceeding 
thirty additional days. 
Military Leave is any time off that is provided to staff who are members of the National Guard or other reserve 
component of the United States Armed Services and who are called to active duty, attend scheduled reserve service, 
and/or temporary training duty. Paid leave will only be granted for Military branches recognized as part of the US Armed 
Forces. The SC State Guard is not considered part of the US Armed Forces. SC State Guard leave will be approved but will 
not be paid. 

JURY DUTY 

The city recognizes Jury Duty as a civic responsibility and an opportunity for meaningful service.  Accordingly, an 
employee who is summoned to report to jury duty shall be excused from employment for the days required to serve as a 
juror.  Employees who serve will be compensated in addition to court payments so that the daily amount will equal their 
normal daily earnings up to a maximum of ten working days per calendar year.  However, an employee will not be 
compensated for more than 8 hours in any one day, or for more than 40 hours per week.  Employees are expected to 
report to work when released by the court on any day of jury service. 

 



BEREAVEMENT 

The city recognizes the problems involved when a member of one’s immediate family passes away.  To lend assistance, 
the city grants paid time off to regular employees up to a maximum of ten scheduled workdays (Two Weeks) in order to 
arrange for and/or attend the funeral service.  Verification of the reason for the absence may be required upon request 
of the employee’s supervisor, department head or Human Resources.  Pay for each day of funeral leave will be made at 
the employee’s current straight-time rate of pay for a scheduled workday.  For the purpose of this policy, “immediate 
family” is defined as being the employee’s spouse, son, or daughter. Three days may be granted for family. For the 
purpose of this policy “family” is defined as father, mother, brother, sister, grandparent, grandchild, father-in-law, 
mother-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law or any other dependent living in the employee’s household. The family is 
considered to include stepfamily relationships. 

In the case of other close relatives, the allowance is limited to not more than two full days of absence to be reimbursed 
at one scheduled day’s straight rate employee’s brother-in-law, sister-in-law, aunt, uncle, niece, nephew.  The allowance 
is limited to not more than one full day of absence to be reimbursed at one scheduled day’s straight rate for the 
employees’ cousin.  If the employee wishes to attend the funeral of a person who is not named above, the employee 
should request a personal leave of absence through their Department Head and the Human Resources Department, 
explaining the nature of his relationship with the deceased. The employee will receive no pay for the period he is on 
leave, or it can be charged to annual leave. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 



APPROVED MINUTES 
BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS 

CAYCE CITY HALL 
1800 12th Street Extension 

Monday, December 18, 2023 
6:00 PM

I. CALL TO ORDER
The meeting was called to order by Chair Jason Simpson. Board of Zoning Appeals
members Matt Stroud and Cindy Pedersen were present. Monique Ocean and Michael
Conley were present as staff.

II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
a. Matt Stroud made a motion to approve the minutes of January 23, 2023, meeting

and the minutes of June 26, 2023, meeting.  All were in favor.

III. STATEMENT OF NOTIFICATION
Ms. Ocean confirmed that the public and media were informed of the meeting and public
hearing.

IV. OPEN PUBLIC HEARING - VA002-23
The applicant requests a variance from Article 8 Sign Regulations Table 8-B (Number,
Dimension, and Location of Signs Requiring a Permit by Zoning District) to allow a
modification in the number of free-standing signs permitted per lot (increase the number of
allowable signs from one to two). The property is located at 1111 Knox Abbott Drive (Tax Map
Number 004650-01-026). The property is zoned C-3 and located in the Knox Abbott Drive
Overlay Design District.

a. Opening Statement
Mr. Hall Gladden of Colite Signs came before the Board as the applicant for the
variance request.  Mr. Hall stated that the new structure is an urgent care and
imaging center.  Mr. Gladden stated that the building has two separate lobbies.
He stated that it is a regulatory component of the urgent care for sick patients to
be separate from the imaging center.  Mr. Gladden stated that having a sign at
each entrance would improve visibility for a patient who is experiencing an
emergency and needed to find the urgent care portion of the building. Mr.
Gladden stated that having an additional sign would also be beneficial to direct
ambulances coming to the building. Dale Thompson of Lexington Medical Center
came before the Board to speak on the variance request.  Mr. Thompson stated
that the facility is a dual modality facility and needs a sign at each entrance.

b. Public Comment
There was no one present to speak for or against the variance request.

V. CLOSE PUBLIC HEARING - VA002-23
With no further discussion, the public hearing was closed.

VI. DISCUSSION – VA002-23

ITEM V. A. 



ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
DRAFT MINUTES 
DECEMBER 18, 2023 
PAGE 2 OF 2 

The staff evaluation report was presented to the audience and read by Monique Ocean. 
Ms. Ocean stated that staff does not recommend approval of the variance request and that 
it is staff’s opinion that the applicant has failed to provide evidence a hardship to justify 
the variance request. Ms. Ocean ended by stating that staff’s comments are intended for 
clarification and the final decision will be made by the Board.  
 

VII. MOTION – VA002-23 
Cindy Pedersen made a motion to deny the variance request because the Board could not 
find extraordinary and exceptional conditions that pertain to the property. The Board 
agreed that the commercial use as a dual modality healthcare facility does not apply to 
the physical condition of the property and that application of the sign ordinance would 
not restrict use of the property. Jason Simpson seconded the motion.  The vote to deny 
the variance request was unanimous.  
 

VIII. OTHER BUSINESS 
Ms. Ocean mentioned to the Board that the next meeting would be to adopt the annual 
calendar and to elect officers.  She stated By-Laws would be reviewed also. 

 
IX. ADJOURNMENT 

With no further discussion, all were in favor of adjourning the meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Page 1 of 4

Cayce Historical Museum Commission

February 7, 2024

Meeting Minutes

The January 1, 2024 meeting of the Cayce Historical Museum Commission (CHMC) was held in the
Cayce Visitors Center. The meeting was convened at 4:05pm by Chair James Stewart. The following
individuals attended the meeting:

Name Status
James Stewart Chair
Pamela Sulton Vice Chair
Marcy Hayden Secretary
Archie Moore Commissioner
A.G. Dantzler Commissioner
Charlita Earle Commissioner
Garrett Creasman Commissioner (absent)
Mary Sharp Commissioner
David Brinkman Commissioner
Andy Thomas Cayce Museum Curator
Elizabeth Lumsden Cayce Museum Assistant
Jeff Wilkinson Volunteer
Mike Conely Asst. City Manager

Upcoming Events:

2/8-African American Exhibit Opening Reception 6pm-8pm
March-TBA Native American Lecture/Class-Marcy Hayden
March 23rd-Soiree on State Street
April 6th-Tartan Day South

Invocation: Commissioner Dantzler

Action Items:
Debriefing of Christmas Traditions Event
Historic Preservation Planning and Goals

September Meeting Minutes:
The Commission reviewed the previous meeting minutes. Commissioner Moore asked for a typo
to be changed. Commissioner Sulton motioned that the meeting minutes be accepted with
change. Commissioner Earle seconded the motion, and the minutes were approved by unanimous
vote.

ITEM V. A. 



Page 2 of 4

Museum Staff Report

African American Exhibit opening reception will be held on February 8th from 6pm-8pm.
Commissioners that are volunteering to assist with the event should be at the Museum at 5:30pm
to assist the African American Committee.

Staff reported that all of the Christmas decorations have been stored including the stalls and
lumber. Mr. Thomas will debrief further during that portion of the agenda.

The appraisal for Catawba Pottery Collection has been completed and Mr. Thomas has received
the final report. The City is working with underwriters to increase insurance coverage to include
the pottery. The next steps after insurance will be to plan the exhibit and seek sponsorships for
the exhibit.

A bid to repair the Museum windows has been approved and five windows are set to be replaced
with wooden windows by June 30th. There are a total of 15 windows that need to be replaced.
Additionally, bids have been received to do repairs on the floor and walls of the Public Safety
building and is scheduled to be approved in March. Bill Clark from the City garage is getting an
estamine for the vintage fire truck brake repairs.

The Confederate money floating wall is up and has a case and pedestal ready for the exhibit
update. Additionally, the Columbia Airport Exhibit will be the changing exhibit area and will
replace the speedway exhibit. Ms. Lumdsen is working with Columbia Airport to secure items
for display and market the event. Ms. Sulton suggested they include interviews of the employees
that worked there over the years to tie the exhibit to the residents.

The staff is scheduling a homeschool event on March 9th. Details (TBA). Commissioner Hayden
has been asked to give a lecture or class regarding Native American culture.“Sweet Night”
fundraiser and introduction to the Cayce Historical Foundation has been canceled until further
notice.

Christmas in Cayce-Lessons Learned

Commissioners and Staff debriefed regarding the planning and execution of the Christmas in
Cayce-Cayce Traditions events.

● Vendors: The vendors that were originally scheduled to participate reported that they
received great advertising. Thank-you notes should be sent to those that came on the
alternative date. Number of vendors could be increased with some vendors in stalls and
others outside of stalls or inside.

● Weather: Future events need to be planned with a back-up weather location and dry
space for vendors if rain is in forecast. Events need to be rain or shine, unless, like last
year, the City shuts down due to inclement weather. The date of the event should not be
changed and this affected numbers.



Page 3 of 4

● Volunteers: Volunteers were very helpful in decorating, putting up trees and stalls, and
during the event. Additional “volunteer days” should be scheduled as there is normally
one day for decorating. Additional days can be planned to help pack up decorations as
well. There was a great volunteer turn out and school groups or other organizations will
be an asset in future.

● Marketing: The advertising from the City was good, but better coordination between the
Events Committee and others would be helpful in the future. The Chair offered to
coordinate with other Committee Chairs.

● Other Items: During strategic planning sessions, task lists, assignments, and volunteer
lists were discussed.

Strategic Planning

The Commissioners completed the first part of the strategic planning process on October 11 with
StopGap Solutions. The second session occurred on 30th, 2024 from 12-4pm at the Museum.
The finalized report will be sent in the following weeks.

Historic Preservation

Potential Historic Preservation Initiatives:
● Demolition Permit Process change to allow for a two week delay/review period to

determine if something is “historically significant” to Cayce. Commissioners discussed
the pros and cons of this initiative and roles of the Commission in this process.
Additional information will be needed and research into other communities that have
adopted such processes.

● Creation of a list of “Significant Resources” for the City of Cayce which would include a
survey process, review and development of a process to make the determination. This list
would include “historically significant” sites that would include structures/locations that
are 50 years or older, have historic, pre-historic, architectural or other value to the
community based on historic preservation best practices. Additional information is
needed regarding development of this list and it was suggested to seek out city
preservationists (City of Columbia and Historic Columbia) to get more information
regarding ordinances and initiatives.

● Erecting Historical Markers-As part of preservation efforts, City of Cayce or Cayce
Historic Foundation markers could be erected around sites or locations to bring
awareness of these sites and the history of the community. An ad hoc committee could be
created to review applications for these markers and members could be from local
neighborhoods. Additionally, meeting with neighborhoods will be a great way to let
communities know about this initiative and how they can preserve their communities
history.

Additional discussion by Commissioners included specific places, place names and other items
that could be included on the list. Discussion around these initiatives ideas will continue.



Page 4 of 4

Donations

No updates at this time.

Old State Road NRHP Nomination

No updates at this time.

Additional Business:

No additional business.

With no other business on the meeting agenda, Commissioner Earle motioned to adjourn the
meeting. Commissioner Brinkman seconded the motion and the Commission voted unanimously
to adjourn the meeting at 5:15 PM.



Mayor 

Elise Partin 

Mayor Pro-Tem 

Tim James 

Council Members 

Phil Carter 
Hunter Sox 

Byron Thomas 

City Manager 

Tracy Hegler 

Deputy City Manager 

Jim Crosland 

Assistant City Manager 

Michael Conley 

1800 12th Street | PO Box 2004 | Cayce SC 29171 

P 803 796 9020 | F 803 796 9072 

caycesc.gov 

APPROVED MINUTES 

PLANNING COMMISSION 

MONDAY, FEBRUARY 26, 2024 

CAYCE CITY HALL - 1800 12th  Street 

6:30 PM 

I. CALL TO ORDER

The meeting was called to order by Chair Richard Boiteau.  Members present were Robert Power,

Michael Wuest, Patty Foy, Nancy Stone-Collum, and Danny Creamer. Planning Commissioner

Michael Mahoney was absent.  Staff present were Michael Conley and Monique Ocean.

II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Nancy Stone-Collum made a motion to approve the minutes to the January 22, 2024, meeting with

corrections. Danny Creamer seconded the motion.  All were in favor.

III. STATEMENT OF NOTIFICATION

Ms. Ocean confirmed that the media and public were made aware of the meeting.

IV. COMMISSION MATTERS

a. Review and Adoption of Amended Bylaws for the Planning Commission

Staff discussed the Planning Commission requested changes that had been made to the

Commission’s Bylaws. Nancy Stone - Collum made a motion to replace the language regarding

appointment of the Secretary with the language from the South Carolina MASC Model document.

Danny Creamer seconded the motion. By a vote of 2 in favor and 4 against, the motion to use the

language from the MASC did not pass. The Planning Commission requested that language

regarding plats presented to the Planning Commission also be revised. Grammatical errors were also

pointed out and the addition of page numbers was requested. Danny Creamer made a motion to

adopt the Bylaws with the revisions.  Michael Wuest seconded the motion all were in favor.

V. NEW BUSINESS

A Staff report was given of new development throughout the City.

VI. ADJOURNMENT

Michael Wuest made a motion to adjourn.  Patty Foy seconded the motion.  All were in favor.

ITEM V. A. 



City of Cayce 
Committee Appointments/Reappointments 

April 9, 2024

COUNCIL ACTION REQUIRED 

BOARD OF ZONING APPEAL – TWO (2) POSITIONS 
The Board of Zoning Appeal currently has two (2) open positions.  The City has received potential 
member applications from Ms. Shirley McClerkin-Motley, Mr. Phillip Corley, Ms. Karen Fitch and Mr. 
Chip Salek Jr. in that order.  Their applications are attached for Council’s review.     

PLANNING COMMISSION – ONE (1) POSITION 
Ms. Patty Foy’s term on the Planning Commission expired in March and she would like to serve again.  
She has served on the Commission since 2022 and consistently attends meetings.  Her reappointment 
application is attached for Council’s review.       

NO COUNCIL ACTION REQUIRED 

The following positions remain open until receipt of potential member applications. 

There are no open positions at this time.   

APPOINTMENT PROCESS 

Cayce citizens have an opportunity to actively participate in the City through their services on a 
number of advisory boards, commissions, foundations and committees. These groups help shape 
and carry out policy. 

Applications are accepted at any time for all City of Cayce boards, commissions, foundations and 
committees.  Cayce citizens wishing to apply for appointment may submit a potential member 
application to the Municipal Clerk, P. O. Box 2004, Cayce, SC 29171. More information and a copy 
of the application can be found on our website at caycesc.gov or by calling City Hall at 803-796-
9020. 

City Council considers received applications at a meeting immediately following an opening. 

ITEM V. B. 



ITEM V. B. 



ITEM V. B. 





ITEM V. B. 





ITEM V. B. 





ITEM V. B. 




	Agenda
	Item I. B. - March 5, 2024 Regular Council Meeting Minutes
	Item I. B. - March 20, 2024 Budget Work Session Minutes
	Item I. B. - March 20, 2024 Regular Council Meeting Minutes
	Item III. A. - White Paper Handheld Radios
	Item III. B. - White Paper External Boards
	Item III. C. - White Paper MOA US 21 Bridge Replacement
	Item III. C. - MOA (Sewer) US 21
	Item III. C. - MOA (Water) US 21
	Item IV. A. - Whitepaper Text Amendment Design Overlay Districts
	Item IV. A. - Ordinance Amending Text Amendment Design Overlay District
	Item IV. A. - Redline of Ordinance Design Overlay Districts
	Item IV. B. White Paper re Leave Policy for City Employees
	Item IV. B. - Resolution Approving Leave Policy
	Item IV. B. - City Leave Policy
	Item V. A - Board of Zoning Appeal December 18, 2023 Meeting Minutes
	Item V. A - Musuem Commission February 7, 2024 Meeting Minutes
	Item V. A. - Planning Commission February 26, 2024 Meeting Minutes
	Item V. B. - Appts and Reappts Report
	Item V. B. - Foy Reappt Application
	Item V. B. - McClerkin-Motley Application
	Item V. B. - Corley Appt Application
	Item V. B. - Fitch Appt Application
	Item V. B. - Salek Appt Application

